Offering Memorandum: Part [I of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form C)

SMARTI L Inc.
20 N. Aviador St Unit C
Camarillo, CA 93010
https://www.smartfitinc.com,

Up to $1,069,99%.84 in Class B Monvoting Common Stock at $1.12
Minimum Target Amount: §9,999.36

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose vour entire
investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the
merits and risks involved, These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or
regulatory authority. Furthermaore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The 1.5, Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does
it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature,

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an
independent determination that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: SMARTL Inc.
Address: 20 N. Aviador 5t Unit C, Camarillo, CA 93010

State of Incorporation:; CA
Date Incorporated: May 16, 2013

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: £9,999,36 | 8,928 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock
Offering Maximum; $1,069,%99.84 | 955,357 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Class B Nonvoting Commaon Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: 51.12

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $2&0.00

‘Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adiustment for bonus shares, See Bonus info below,

Early Bird

Super Early Bird - First 7 days | SMARTTit Cap + 20% Product Coupon + 15% bonus shares

Early Bird Bonus - Next 7 days | SMARTTit Cap + 20% Product Coupon + 10% bonus shares

Volume

Tier 1 perk - ($500) | SMARTfit Cap + 20% Product Coupon + 2% bonus shares

Tier 2 perk - ($1000) | SMARTfit Cap + 20% Product Coupon + 5% bonus shares

Tier 3 perk - (35,000) | SMARTHE Cap + 20% Product Coupon + 7% bonus shares

Tier 4 perk - (10,0000 | SMARTfit Cap + 20% Product Coupon + 10% bonus shares

Tier 5 perk - ($25,000) | SMARTfit Cap + 20% Product Coupon + 12% bonus shares + Zoom Call with Founder and CEOQ
Tier & perk - (350,000) | SMART Cap + 20% Product Coupon + 15% bonus shares + Zoom Call with founder and CEOQ

Product Coupon;: usable on website orders, transferrable, expires 12 months from issuance, does not include shipping, tax or installation if
needed

"All perks occur when the offering is completed.
The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus

SMARTI Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for the
StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in this offering. For example, if vou buy
100 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock at $1.12 / share, you will receive 110 shares of Class B Nonvoting Commaon Stock, meaning
vou'll own 110 shares for $112. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the
nearest whole share.

This 10%% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a
waltlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest should room in the
offering become available if prior investments are cancelled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they are eligible for.
Insider Investment Notice

Dfficers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the company (or their immediate family members) may make
investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign page.

The Company and its Business
Company Overview

At SMARTTit, we have designed a neuro-cognitive gvm programmed to enhance human performance in all populations. Our gamified
interactive training arena simulates real life, allowing the brain and body to strengthen together.

SMARTTit adds to the power of dual task {cognitive-motor) training by delivering all activities using gamification which increases both
engagement and enjoyment, and in turn produces quick results. Combining exercise with cognitive tasks, as the SMARTFit products do, may
provide neural protection across a person’s lifetime. Researchers believe that such novel interventions designed to stimulate key cognitive
domains during exercise may be especially beneficial to brain health over the adult lifespan. (Source:
https:/www.nchi.nlm.nih.gov/pme/articles/PMC3926798,)

SMARTTit's cloud based data management system captures baseline tests and progress reporting quickly and automatically. This has a
powerful effect on adherence as clients can quickly see the benefits of this training in graphs available by simply logzing into their



Android/ 085 App.

SMARTYI s business model is multi-tiered. Starting off, we have created hardware and software solutions that get sold through a domestic
and international distributor network, at a mark-up, into rehab facilities. Second, our cloud-based technology will collect subscription
revenue from BZB and B2C rehab facilities, B2B and B2C commercial fitness facilities, and in the future B2C home fitness market. Third,
revenue will be generated through providing data services to research institutions.

SMARTTit's current focus is on the rehab and active aging/medical wellness exercise equipment markets,

According to ICAA (International Council of Active Aging), the total US addressable active aging/medical wellness equipment market is

valued at $207 Billion USD, including US senior centers, assisted living facilities, retirement communities, health clubs, and continuing care
facilities. (Source:

https:/d19j0gt0x55bap.cloudfront.net/production/onboardings,/ 6 143ccc949%d 3 70bc05855c/documents/file/ICAA_Paper on_the Active Aging Mark
Management also sees our product plaving a significant role in the Global Sporting Goods & Equipment Market, which was estimated by

Research and Markets to be USD 49,35 billion in 2020, is expected to reach USD 53.74 billion in 2021, and is projected to grow at a

Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 9.26% to reach USD 91.77 billion by 2027." (Source:

https://www.researchandmarkets.com,/reports/ 498 5899/ sporting-goods-and -equipment - market -research)

The home fitness equipment market has morphed significantly since the arrival of Peloton, Mirror and other interactive online streaming
fitness programs. Management believes SMARTSit is poised to enter this market. According to Allied Market Research, the global at-home
fitness equipment market size was valued at $5.5 Billion USD in 2019 and is projected to reach $11.45 Billion USD by 2027, (Source:
https:waw. globenewswire.comy/news-release/202 1/06/17/224861 170en/At-Home-Fitness-Equipment-Market-to-Garner-1 1-45-Billion-
by-2027-Allied-Market- Research.html)

SMARTTit Inc. (formerly Multisensory Fitness Inc.) was incorporated in California on May 16, 2013, The corporation’s name was changed to
SMARTTit Inc., on October 20, 2016.

After the formation in 2013, the company acquired the assets and certain liabilities of Exercise Technology Inc. (an affiliated entity) in
exchange for founder’s shares. The acquisition enabled SMARTFit to fund the development of its operating system with an existing revenue
stream and to maintain the talent required to take on the development of the new product lines.

In addition, the company has utilized technology from another affiliated entity, Multisensory Technologies Inc., under common ownership
since Jume 1, 2003, pursuant to a licensing agreement. The company entered into a technology purchase agreement, effective January 1,
2017, to purchase the technology from Multisensory Technology Inc. The purchase agreement requires the Company to pay a one-time fee
of $100,000 plus a fixed fee of $130 per main controlling computer unit (CCU) on the first 1,250 CCUs sold or leased and $100 per CCU
thereafter through December 31, 2026 or until an aggregate of $20,000,000 has been paid. See 2017 financial review.

The technology (operating system) purchased from Multisensory Technogies Inc. includes the following components for the operating
systems of the SMARTTI products:

1. Targets’ custom operating system to;
= Minimize CPU requirements (smallest, cost effective, high speed)
« Optimize CPU speed to keep up with data flow with minimal data transfer (to the CPU)
« Minimize interrupt latency and time-in-process
=« Real time processing of incoming sensor data
2. CPU custom operating system to:
» Minimize CPU requirements (size, cost, speed)
« Minimize interrupt latency and time-in-process
» Ahility to process 8 communication interfaces at system optimal speed
« Algorithms to process incoming processed sensor data according to the game being run
= Algorithms to "play games®, ease of adding games of many styles
» Capable of processing 127 Targets
« Capable of processing 15 speaker/audio channels
= Capable of processing 15 displays for time or score
3. Bensing system to identify the location, proximity, pressure and accuracy of a “hits”:
» Uses sound/vibration to detect “hits”
« Uses Target CPU algorithms to determine local hit {30nSec timing system)
» Uses Target CPU algorithms to determine “hit” strength

The company built on this operating system to develop its 6 product lines, the app and the app/user interface to drive the products in 45+
game categories (and counting), 9 market specific applications, launch on the HIPAA-compliant Microsoft Azure Cloud, cognitive and
motor (while moving) testing capabilities, deployment of customized programming across multiple sites, and tracking and reporting of
performance and progress. This makes SMARTTit the only product today that can both measure and provide interventions for a full range of
cognitivie and motor performance for all demographic groups.



Another affiliated entity is SMARTfit Active LLC, which is owned by the company {as a minority member) and a number of its shareholders.
SMARTTit Active LLC has provided loans to the company to fund the completion of development and initial manufacturing of the
company's new injection-molded product lines that provide the ability to scale manufacturing quickly.

Competitors and Industry

We currently operate in two highly competitive industries. Many companies manufacture, sell or distribute exercise equipment. Some of
our competitors focus on one market; others compete with us in both markets.

1. Rehabilitation Exercise Equipment Industry: This industry focuses on addressing neurological and musculoskeletal conditions, both

acute and chronic, including treatment in patients with TBIs, stroke, Parkinson's, and dementia. According to Global Market Insights 2019

report, the total addressable global rehab equipment market surpassed USD 18.6 Billion in 2019 and is poised to grow at over 7.8% CAGE to

reach $31.2 Billion in 2026, (Source: https:/www.gminsights com/industry-analysis/rehabilitation-equipment-market) In addition,

according to ICAA (International Council of Active Aging), the total US addressable active aging/medical wellness equipment market is

valued at $207 billion, including US senior centers, assisted living facilities, retirement communities, health clubs, and continuing care

facilities. (Source:

https:/d19j0qt0x55bap.cloudfront.net/production/onboardings /6 143ccc?49%d 5 70bc 58550/ documents/ file/ICAA Paper on_the Active Aging Mark

Competitors include non-immersive rehabilitation technologies such as Bioness BITS, Biodex, Jintronix, Flint Rehab, Dividat Senso, and
GestureTek Health. Many of these companies focus on stroke and often limit their integration of gross-motor responses in favor of more
isolated movements, such as moving the hand, arm, wrist, neck, and trunk, in a gamified on-screen context. SMARTTI is more focused on
functional movements paired with a variety of cognitive tasks, whereas many competitors separate these functions.

2. Commercial Fitness Exercise Equipment Industry (includes general fitness, sports, tactical training, wellness, vouth, and 55+
populations): This industry focuses on the goals of prevention of physical and cognitive decline in older adults and on enhancing physical
and mental performance in athletes, tactical operators, and youth. According to Grand View Research, the global fitness equipment market
is predicted to grow to $13.24 Billion by 2022 at an anticipated CAGR of 3.6%. (Source: https:Swow . grandviewresearch.com/press-
release/global-fitness-equipment-market) Additionally, Research and Markets reports that the Global Sporting Goods & Equipment Market,
was estimated to be USD 49,35 Billion in 2020, is expected to reach USD 53.74 hillion in 2021, and is projected to grow at a Compound
Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 9.26% to reach USD 91.77 billion by 2027.7 (Source:

hitps:www, researchandmarkets. com/reports/ 4985899/ sporting-goods-and-equipment-market-research)

Competitors focus mainly on reaction training for spocts, utilizing less cognitively demanding reaction lights and multiple object tracking.
NeuroTrainer, NeuroTracker, Reflexion, and Trazer rely on following cues on 2D screens and in virtual-reality to engage perceptual-
cognitive functions, whereas FitLight, Reaxing and Blazepods offer light-based colored targets (typically in LED formats) that are
extinguished by proximity or touch. The primary difference with SMARTIIL is the incorporation of a wider variety of cognitive stimuli {as
opposed to simple reaction lights) and the capability to incorporate movements specific to the user's goals, as compared to touching or

tapping small targets.

Important competitive factors include price, product quality and performance, diversity of features, warranties and customer service, Most
of these competitors offer only a subset of SMARTTit's capabilities, focusing on emphasizing visual, cognitive, or motor functions, as
opposed to combining them in a more functional, real-world context. We are also praised by customers for our outstanding training and
Custormer service,

SMARTI products are also distinguished from most competitors by our robust technology platform that includes a unique-to-the-market
combination of durability (capable of withstanding major force strikes at impact), flexibility (proprietary software interface and operating
system allow for multi-market custom programming), and functionality (includes rapid CPU processing) that enables multi-site remote
system management, group training, recurring revenue subscription content offerings, and data collection methods and reporting within a
cloud-based svstem.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Hardware, R&D and Manufacturing
SMARTTit has created its own operating system to handle the speed (matched to the fastest possible human motor response time) of the
data exchange between the system and targets to deploy stimuli. The operating system functions through a line of products, each designed
to meet the requirements of different markets and offering scalability of touch sensitivity, cognitive demand, and ability to take impact

from most human, fitness, and sports equipment contact. The development of this custom operating system was necessary in order to
deliver a simulation of larger-scale, cognitive-motor interaction at any level of function.

We manufacture at our headgquarter facility in Camarillo, using domestic and overseas component suppliers. We are in early conversations
to outsource scalable manufacturing of our Mini systems.

Development of the operating system, hardware and applications are substantially complete. We have been shipping product in the fitness
market since 2018 and in the rehab market since 2019, Upgrades will continue to happen as we mature the platform leaving no customer
behind. All hardware is designed to take future upgrades.

All SMARTFit products consist of three hardware components.

« A tablet or cell phone that hosts the 105/Android user interface app which communicates to and from the powerful, high speed SMARTIit
controller, deploving instructions and collecting data.

» The SMARTfit controller which receives programming instructions from the user interface app, deploys and manages the delivery of
gamified content to and from the targets, target displays, target sensing system, on-board multi-channel audio systems and time clock. The
controller delivers live reaction and accuracy data to the user interface which displays the information on its display screen in real-time.
The controller also features high-speed communications of touch input faster than the fastest human, and is capable of managing up to 32-
channels of Bluetooth input from wearable devices.

» The SMARTfit computerized targets which can be housed in either panels or pods, and they include a sensing system and robust LED



displays (high definition video screens are in development). The sensing system manages the connection between human and machine
measuring accuracy, speed, placement, and power upon contact with the SMARTfit svstem setting up a unigue competitive advantage by
training proprioception!! and modulation of power on contact during gameplay. All of this is accomplished by managing the high-speed
communication to and from the controller in coordination with up to 128 other intelligent targets during game-play. In order to be
responsive to a full range of human contact the sensing system is able to adjust to varied levels of human contact from light to heavy. The
LED dizplays deliver visual cues such as alpha-numerics, colors, and images (video is in development) that set-up an interactive
relationship with participants who respond physically by touching the correct target.

L} Proprioveption is the perception or awareness of the pasition and movement of the body.

This highly flexible configuration of hardware and software within its own operating system is practically limitless when it comes to
expanding games and market specific programming well intoe the future.

We are currently selling the following products:
Mini

The SMARTTIt Mini comes in two versions: Low Impact and High Impact Mini. Both versions are available as a wall-mount or a portable
system and include nine computerized targets in a square training station.

The SMARTTIt Mini is the ideal training solution for workouts that focus on concentrated cognitive and motor training.

We believe the SMARTfit Low Impact Mini's smaller footprint makes it ideal for tight spaces and its portability makes it a perfect option for
delivering dual task training room-to-room in retirement communities and classrooms.

The SMARTTfit Mini High Impact Systems are designed to withstand the power of any athlete and equipment such as air-filled balls and
medicine balls.

Singnle

The SMARTTIt Single can be wall-mounted, floor-mounted or portable, and can be optionally configured to interact with up to five portable
Strike Pods to create a 360 degree training environment.

We consider the SMARTTit Single to be the ideal trainer for ball sports as it offers a larger playing area to catch rebounds,

Applications include turnkey personal training and small group training programs for sporcts performance, youth sports, return-to-play
sports rehab and for wellness.

Strfke-Pols

The SMARTTit Strike-Pods are portable and can be set up in nearly any configuration allowing the creation of endless workout environment
combinations, each with unigue ergonomic, physical and cognitive challenges. The Strike-Pods can operate independently or can be
connected as additional touch points with the SMARTIit Single and SMARTTit Mini systems.

ProTraimer MultiTralner

The SMARTfit ProTrainer can be configured in two, three, or four connected sections to form an integrated electronic backboard, or, to
form competing stations aligned side-by-side. Each section hosts its own scoreboard and 9 strike/touch-sensitive targets individually
registering the location of each strike.

When operating as an electronic backboard, the sections register a single score. When operating as stations, each station will register its
own competing score, This versatility offers the benefits of both large group/team training as well as training for ball sports where the
system doubles as a responding opponent. The ProTrainer adjustable sensing system is designed to withstand impact from hands, feet,
boxing gloves, and any air-filled medicine or sports ball.

We consider the SMARTTit® MultiTrainer to be the perfect training solution for large groups. Programming is available for fitness and team
building programs for all ages especially vouth and senlors.

Subscription

In 2022 we plan to add two levels of monthly subscriptions fees to our offering for all future sales. The commercial license subscription fee
will be based on the value of the content and will initially range between 539 and $150 per month. The consumer subscription will allow
individuals to track their own personal data and will initially be priced under 85 per month. We anticipate that this recurring revenue
stream will produce substantial value to the Company in the coming years. As of this writing, we estimate that this will take 3 months of
additional software development.

B2E Distributi

The domestic and international distributor networks are 50% contractually secured in the US and Canada, secured in China and Southeast
Asia. Yet to be secured are Europe and South America. We are focused on training the 200 dealer/sales reps in the US who have come on
board since March, which is where additional support staff are needed.

B2C Distributi
Online sales. No sales plan at this stage but it Is expected that the home systems will initially be sold online.
Marketing

The experience of playing sells the products. SMARTHit will take the experience back to potential buyers as soon as Covid allows, through
tradeshows, trials, and group demonstrations.



The Team
Officers and Directors

MName: Catherine Lamberti
Catherine Lamberti's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer;

» Pogition: Chief Executive Officer and Founder
Dates of Service; May 15, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Sets the direction of the company including product development and market entry focus. - 3180k vearly - 10% paid
in cash - 90% deferred

# Position: Chairperson of the board of directors
Dates of Service: May 13, 2013 - Present

Responsibilities: Ensures the company focus is on staying legally compliant and focused on protecting the shareholders. - currently
no compensation

Other business experience in the past three vears:

& Emplover: SuperSprings International
Title: Director
Dates of Service: July 18, 1994 - Present
Responsibilities: Founder and member of the board of directors

Other business experience in the past three vears:

» Emplover: Exercise Technology Inc.
Title: Director
Dates of Service: April 19, 2011 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors

Other business experience in the past three vears:

# Emplover: Multisensory Technologies Inc.
Title: Director
Dates of Service: January 10, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the Board

Mame: James Manley
James Manley's current primary role is with the Issuer,
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

#* Position: Chiel Technology Officer
Dates of Service: May 13, 2013 - Present

Responsibilities: Hardware and software design and development, $180kvearly - $133k cash - 347k deferred - Total of 2M stock
options - 1,666,607 vested, 333,333 outstanding to vest

& Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: February 24, 2016 - Present

Responsibilities: Board duties - currently no compensation

Other business experience in the past three vears:

* Employer: U5 Government [Classified)
Title: [Classified]
Dates of Service: Novernber 15, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: [Classified]

Other business experience in the past three vears:

* Emplover: Mulitsensory Technologies Inc.
Title: Director

Dates of Service: January 29, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of Board of Directors

Mame: Frauke Wittmer-Grant



Frauke Wittmer-Grant's current primary role is with FWG Consulting. Frauke Wittmer-Grant currently services estimated 15-30 hours per
week hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

# Position: Board Secretary
Dates of Service: May 13, 2013 - Present

Responsibilities: Takes care of the recording, monitoring of all securities and financial transactions relating to shareholders. $65/hour
- all deferred

# Position: Interim Chief Financial Officer
Dates of Service: sugust 31, 2020 - Present

Responsibilities: Ensures the company records its financial transactions according GAAP standards. $65/hour - currently deferred

# Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: May 17, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Board Duties - currently no compensation

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Emplover: FWG Consulting
Title: Owner
Dates of Service: July 01, 2000 - Present
Responsibilities: Provide strategic business consulting services (focus on finance, legal, marketing, business development) to small to
medium-sized technology companies domestically and internationally.

Other business experience in the past three vears:

» Emplover: Multisensory Technologies Inc.
Title: Corporate Secretary
Dates of Service: January 29, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee shareholder relations, manage board of directors, execute and maintain official documents

Other business experience in the past three vears:

# Emplover: Exercise Technology [nc.
Title: Corporate Secretary
Dates of Service: April 19, 2011 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee shareholder relations, manage board of directors, execute and maintain official documents

Other business experience in the past three vears:

& Emplover: Aerial Alchemy
Title: CFO
Dates of Service: July 01, 2018 - December 31, 2019
Responsibilities: Strategic business planning, fundraising, oversee accounting, manage HR

Other business experience in the past three yvears:

» Emplover: Santa Barbara Strings
Title: Director
Dates of Service: March 16, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Board of Directors

Mame: Diego Jacobson

Diego Jacobson's current primary role is with White Glacier Manufacturing Corp.. Diego Jacobson currently services monthly board
meetings hours per week in their role with the Issuer,

Pozitions and offices currently held with the issuer:

# Position: Board member
Dates of Service: September 23, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: New board member - currently no compensation

Other business experience in the past three vears:

# Employver: White Glacier Manufacturing Corp.
Title: CEQ
Dates of Service; January 13, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: To develop and market survival suits for cold water.



Other business experience in the past three vears:

# Emplover: Blugwater Defense
Title: Founder and Director
Dates of Service; March 30, 1988 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors

Other business experience in the past three vears:

* Emplover: Ridgetop Partners
Title: Owner and Manager
Dates of Service: January 01, 2005 - December 30, 2020
Responsibilities: Managing industrial properties

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Emplover: Exercizse Technology Inc.
Title: Director
Dates of Service: June 27, 2012 - Present
Responsibilities: Board Member

Mame: Michael Haves

Michael Haves's current primary role is with Awake To Love Inc.. Michael Haves currently services monthly board meetings hours per week
in their role with the [ssuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

* Position: Board member
Dates of Service: September 24, 2021 - Present

Responsibilities: Protect the interests of the shareholders and ensure the company is legally compliant. - currently no compensation

Other business experience in the past three vears:

# Emplover: Awake To Love Inc.
Title: CEQ
Dates of Service: October 30, 2012 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for strategy/content and consulting for clients.

Other business experience in the past three vears:

& Emplover: SuperSprings International
Title: Director
Dates of Service: October 01, 1998 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors

Mame: Jason Polete

Jason Polete's current primary rele is with MDamerica. Jason Polete currently services monthly board meetings hours hours per week in
their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

# Pogition: Director
Dates of Service: April 04, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Protect the interests of the shareholders and ensure the company is legally compliant. Currently no compensation.

Other business experience in the past three years:

» Emplover: MDamerica
Title: CEQ
Dates of Service: May 01, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Owner and chief executive officer

Mame: Greg Blanchard

Greg Blanchard's current primary role is with Dvnamic Direct Inc.. Greg Blanchard currently services monthly board meetings hours hours
per week in their role with the [ssuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

#* Position: Director



Dates of Service: April 04, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Protect the interests of the shareholders and ensure the company is legally compliant. Currently no compensation

Other business experience in the past three vears:

» Emplover: Dynamic Direct Inc.
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: July 19, 1999 - Present
Responsibilities: Owner and chief executive officer

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its financial condition. The company is still subject to all
the same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These include risks relating to
economic downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed companies. You should consider general risks as well as
specific risks when deciding whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, "our”, or “Company™) involves a high degree of risk and should only be
considered by those who can afford the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the shares of Class B Nonvoting
Common Stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to enable them to indefinitely retain an
illiquid investment. Each investor in the Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential investor regarding the
Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the other information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk
factors are not intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial and other risks inherent in the
investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections
There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to find
sufficient demand for our product, that people will think it's a better option than competing products, or that we will able to provide the

service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract business.

Any valuation at this stage fs difffcult to assess
The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed companies that are valued publicly through market-driven
stock prices, the valuation of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities vou are buying is limited

Any shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC limitations of transfer.
This means that the stock/note that vou purchase cannot be resold for a period of one yvear. The exception to this rule is if vou are
transferring the stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering registered with the Commission, to a member
of your family, trust created for the benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several vears or longer, For the 12 months following your investment there will be
restrictions on how vou can resell the securities vou receive. More Importantly, there is no established market for these securities and there
may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able to find a buver, The Company may be

acquired by an existing player in the exercise equipment industry. However, that may never happen or it may happen at a price that results
in vou losing money on this investment.

{f the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company, is offering Class B Nonvolting Common Stock in the amount of up to $1,06% 999 84 in this offering, and may close on any
investments that are made. Even if the maximum amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the future in order to
grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the Company itself or the broader economyy, it
may not survive, IF the Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds sought, it will have to find other sources of funding
for some of the plans outlined in "Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital

We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support cur working capital requirements as we grow, Although interest rates are low, it
is still a difficult environment for ohtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when we need it, we could be forced to
raise additional equity capital, modify our growth plans, or take some other action. [ssuing more equity may require bringing on additional
investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose
value as a result of this additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, vour ownership percentage would be
decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible
that we will choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a return on your investrment could be our
intellectual property. Even if we are not forced to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your investment.

Terms of subsegquent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in the future, which may reduce the value of your
investment in the Class B Monvoting Common Stock. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to
raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders of Class B Nonvoting
Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, institutional or



other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to be more favorable than the terms of yvour investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our management team with respect to the application and
allocation of the proceeds of this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current business plan. We,
however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will
have broad discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational performance are hypothetical and are
bazed on management's best estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by our independent
accountants, These projections will be based on assumptions which management believes are reasonable, Some assumptions invariably will
not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management’s control. Therefore, actual results of operations will
vary from such projections, and such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

The Class B Nonvoting Common Stock that an investor is buving has no voting rights attached to them. This means that vou will have no
rights in dictating on how the Company will be run. You are trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions that will
grow vour investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liguidation of our company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash remaining
after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority non-voting holder, and therefore must trust the
management of the Company to make good business decisions that grow vour investment,

Insufffcient Fumds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it may cease
operating and you would get nothing. Even if we sell all the Class B Nonvoting Common Stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possiblyy need to raise more funds in the future, and i it can't get them, we may fail. Even if we do make a successful offering in the
future, the terms of that offering might result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later investors might get better
terms.

This offering involves “rolfing closings, ™ which may mean that earfier investors may not have the benefit of information that later investors
have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we mav request that StartEngine instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to
s, At that point, investors whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors, All early-stage companies are
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommaon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to
companies” businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes happen during the course of an offering, we
must file an amendment to our Form C with the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right to
withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be
our investors and will have no such right.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on the market and/or various respective product
development programs. They have much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They may succeed in
developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no
assurance that competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete or that the products developed by us will be preferred to
any existing or newly developed technologies, It should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits
SMARTTit Inc. was formed on May 16, 2013, Accordingly, the Company has a limited history upon which an evaluation of its performance

and future prospects can be made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated with new enterprises.
These include likely fluctuations in operating results as the Company reacts to developments in its market, managing its growth and the
entry of competitors into the market. We will only be able to pay dividends on any shares once our directors determine that we are
financially able to do so. SMARTI it Inc. has incurred a net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There is no
assurance that we will be profitable in the next 3 years or generate sufficient revenues to pay dividends to the holders of the shares.

We are an early stage company and have fimited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and limited revenue. If vou are investing in this company, it's because vou think that
SMARTTit is a good idea, that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the products and services, that we can price them right
and sell them to enough people so that the Company will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there can be no assurance
that we will ever be profitable.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectval property could be unenforceable or ineffective

Competitors and other third parties may infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate our trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets or other
intellectual property. Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is possible that competitors will be
able to design around our intellectual property or otherwise defeat our intellectual property rights through some other mechanism. If
competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value
will be materially and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’'s ability to compete in the marketplace. Moreover, if our
trademarks and copyrights are deemed unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might be able to
raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even i we believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of
our trademarks or copyrights, we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a multi-vear litigation
with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of



winning the suit in light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not to enforce our trademark(s) or
copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are
unable to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright({s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in the Company could be
significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other highly qualified personne! in the fiture, could harm
our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and
hire additional emplovees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal, human resources and other areas.
Depending on the economic environment and the Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals for
such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring
and investing in the incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are unable to attract, hire and retain
the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employvees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your investment.

We redy on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us, including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal
work, public relations, advertising, marketing, training, installation, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties will fail
to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is possible that we will experience delays, defects, ermors, or
other problems with their work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse to recover damages for
these losses, A disruption in these key or other suppliers” operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, vour
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their performance.

The Company is vilnerable to hackers and cvber-attacks

As our business is in part based on the internet and cloud services, we may be vulnerable to hackers who may access the data of our users,
customers, investors and the companies that utilize our products, and platform. Further, we rely on a third-party technology provider to
provide some of our back-up technology. Anv disruptions of services or cyber-attacks either on our technology provider or on our internet
service provider could harm our reputation and materially negatively impact our financial condition and business.

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality of our trade secrets, our business and competitive position would be harmed.

We rely on trade secrets, including unpatented know-how, technology and other proprietary information, to maintain our competitive
position. Because we may collaborate with third parties for the development, manufacturing, and clinical evaluation of our products, we
must, from time to time, share trade secrets with them. We seek to protect our proprietary technology by, among other things, entering into
confidentiality agreements, consulting agreements, or other similar contracts with our employees, consultants, scientific advisers,
researchers, and other contractors before disclosing proprietary confidential information. These contracts typically limit the rights of these
parties to use or disclose our confidential information, including our trade secrets. However, the need to share trade secrets and other
confidential information increases the risk that our trade secrets may become known by our competitors, may inadvertently be
incorporated into the technology of others, or may be disclosed or used in violation of these agreements. We cannot guarantee that we will
enter into such contracts with every person that may have or have had access to our confidential information or trade secrets. Monitoring
unauthorized use or disclosure is difficult, and we do not know whether what we have done to protect our trade secrets and proprietary
technologies will be effective. If any of the emplovees, consultants, sclentific advisers, researchers and other contractors who enter into
these contracts do breach or viclate the terms of any of these agreements, we may not have adequate remedies for such breach or violation,
and we could lose our trade secrets as a result, Further, we preserve the confidentiality of our confidential information by maintaining the
physical security of our premises and physical and electronic security of our information technology systems. Although we have confidence
in our efforts, our security measures may be breached. Detecting the disclosure or misappropriation of confidential information and
enforcing a claim that a person illegally disclosed or misappropriated confidential information is difficult, expensive and time-consuming,
and the outcome is unpredictable. Moreover, if confidential information that is licensed or disclosed to us by our partners, collaborators, or
others is inadvertently disclosed or is subject to a breach or violation, we may be exposed to liability to the owner of that confidential
information. On top of all that, our competitors may independently develop their own knowledge, methods and know-how equivalent to
our trade secrets, in which case we would have no right to prevent them, or those to whom they disclose the information, from using it to
compete with us, Furthermore, competitors could purchase our products and replicate or reverse engineer some or all of the competitive
advantages from our technologies on which we do not have patent or copyright protection. If any of our trade secrets were to be lawfully
obtained or independently developed by a competitor, we would have no right to prevent them, or those to whom they communicate the
information, from using that information to compete with us. A competitor's discovery of our trade secrets or any unauthorized use or
disclosure could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.

Tariffs on the import of components needed to manufacture our products can have an adverse effect on our gross margins, generation of
future revenue, financial condition, and operating results.

International supply chains bave been and may continue to be impacted by events outside of our control, limiting our ability to procure
timely delivery of components or other supplies needed to manufacture our products. Importing and exporting has involved more risk,
since 2016, with increasingly heated rhetoric, in some cases coupled with legislative or executive action, from several U.S. and foreign
leaders, including with respect to tariffs against foreign imports of certain materials. Several of the components that go into the
manufacturing of our products are sourced internationally, including from China, where the United States has imposed tariffs on specified
products imported from there, These issues could be further exacerbated by the continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic. We have seen,
and may continue to see, increased congestion and/or new import/export restrictions implemented at ports that we relyv on to deliver
components needed to manufacture our products. In some cases, we have had to secure alternative transportation, such as air freight, or
use alternative routes, at increased costs to run our supply chain. These tariffs have an impact on our component costs and have the
potential to have an even greater impact depending on the outcome of current trade negotiations, especially increases in ULS. tariff rates on
specified products from China. Further increases in our component costs could have a material effect on our gross margins. Tariffs causing
the loss of a significant supplier, an increase in component costs, or delays or disruptions in the delivery of components, could adversely
impact our ability to generate future revenue and earnings and have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating
results,

We may be subect to product fability claims witfch could harm our financial condition and operating resufrs.
The sale of our products exposes us to potential product liability claims. Customers and end users may sue us if any of our products sold to



them fail to perform properly or injure the user, Furthermore, liability claims, whether or not valid or successfully prosecuted, could require
us to spend significant time and money on defending our brand and our products. As such, any product liability claim likely would harm our
reputation in the industry and the market, and our ability to develop and market our products in the future would be adversely affected. In
order to mitigate the potential risk of liability claims the Company carries liability insurance for claims up to an amount of $2,000,000. Our
liahility insurance provides coverage for bodily injury or property damage related to our products. The prescribed limits include coverage
for legal expense to defend the suits brought against the Company.

fncreases in component costs, fong lead times, supply shortages, and supply changes have disrupted our supply chain and may continue to
do g0, which can have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Our ability to support our customers depends in part on our ability to obtain timely and adequate delivery of components to manufacture
our SMARTHt products. The components that go into the manufacture of our products are sourced from a limited number of third-party
suppliers, and some of these components are provided by a single supplier. We are therefore subject to the risks both of shortages and cost
increases. Our ability to meet demand for our products has already been, and may in the future be, impacted by our reliance on the
availability of components from these suppliers and their suppliers. We have already experienced component shortages and price increases,
and we have raised the price of our products in turn. The availability of these components and the stability of their pricing cannot be
assured. Any further interruption or delay in the supply of any of these components, or the inability to obtain these components from
alternate sources at acceptable prices and within a reasonable amount of time, could harm our ability to meet our scheduled product
deliveries to our customers and future orders. Any of these circumstances, or a combination of them, could have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and operating results.

Actual or potential public health emergencies, epidemics, or pandemics (such as the current COVID-19 pandemic) cowld have a materfal
adverse effect on our business, cash flow from operations, or financial condition.

The future impact of actual or anticipated epidemics, pandemics, or other public health emergencies on the Company, our suppliers,
distributors, dealers, and customers could be widespread and substantial, depending on the nature of the emergency, governmental
response, public reaction, and other factors. The impact of the current COVID-19 pandemic has included sickness, quarantines, cancellation
of travel and events, business shutdowns, reduction in economic activity, unemployment, and supply chain disruption. These factors have
had considerable adverse impacts on global economies and financial markets, and also to our supply chain and customer base. During the
COVID-19 pandemic, our sales decreased slightly in 2020 compared to 2019, The continuing pandemic could result in future significant
uncertainty regarding the sales of our products. Our sales could be adversely affected by, among other things, the temporary inability of our
customers to purchase our products due to illness, quarantine, or travel restrictions; dealer, distributor, or customer closures caused by
illness or by government restrictions; changes in interest or demand for our products; and fewer options for marketing and sales of
products or other restrictions in connection with the public health emergency. If such events occur over a prolonged period, they could
increase our costs and the difficulty of operating our business, including accurately planning and executing our operations or maintaining
inventory levels, which may adversely impact our financial performance. The global financial and credit markets have experienced, and
may continue to experience, disruption, uncertainty, and volatility as a result of COVID-19. Our access to capital resources and liquidity
could be adversely impacted by such disruption, uncertainty, or volatility, including difficulty in obtaining credit or being able to obtain
credit only on less favorable terms, The COVID- 19 pandemic may continue to impact our operations, and the impact could be material. The
continuing impact on our business operations could include, but are not limited to, significant numbers of emplovees falling ill with
COVID-19 or its variants: closures necessitated by state and local “shelter-in-place” orders, safety precautions, emplovee illness, or self-
quarantine measures; decrease in our operations’ effectiveness as our employees work from home or as a result of new workplace safety
measures; unavailability of key personnel necessary to conduct our business activities; and supply chain or sales/distribution interruptions
and limitations. We rely in large part on dealers and distributors for sales and marketing of our preducts, and adverse impacts on their
businesses or financial condition could adversely affect our operations including lower sales, delaved payment, interruptions to customer
service, and increased credit risk. Our own efforts to manage, mitigate, and remedy these adverse consequences may be unsuccessful
because the eventual effect of the COVID-19 pandemic depends on many aspects bevond our knowledge or control, including the severity
and duration of the pandemic, actions taken by government authorities for the public safety, long-term economic recovery, and subsequent
CUSLOITIET TESPONSE.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from officers and directors of the company or their immediate family members.
Onece the total amount of funds raised in this offering exceeds the minimum funding goal, officers and directors (and immediate family
members) of the company may make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on

the campaign page.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting
securities as of the date of this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Name [Number of Securities Owned| Type of Security Owned  |Percentage

Catherine Lamberti{ 10,240,000 Linknown 27, 085%
|Cathen'ne Lamberti{10,920,000 Class A Voting Common Stock|
The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Preferred Stock, Class A Voting Common Stock, Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, and Convertible
Promissory Note. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 955,357 of Class B Nonvoting Common
Stock.

Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 10,000,000 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Vating Righis

No rights at this time -- the board has not designated a preferred series
Material Rights

Mo such rights have been designated by the board at this time but presumably there will be a liguidation preference and possibly other
rights if a Series of preferred stock is to be offered in the future.

Class A Voting Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 80,000,000 with a total of 49,460,321 outstanding.
Voting Rights

1 vote per share.
Material Rights

The total amount of outstanding common stock (on an undiluted basis) includes 32,255,066 shares issued and 2,203,255 shares to be issued
pursuant to outstanding warrants.

The total amount outstanding also includes 15 million shares reserved for issuance under the company's Equity Incentive Plan, of which
options for 9,417,620 are issued and vested, options for 507,332 are issued and unvested, and the balance is vet to be issued.

The total amount outstanding does not include securities to be acquired upon the exercise or exchange of other securities, and the exercise
price or exchange value is not currently known or knowable,

Class B Nonvoting Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 10,000,000 with a total of 117,732 outstanding.

Voting Rights
There are no voting rights associated with Class B Nonvoting Common Stock,

Material Rights

There are no material rights associated with Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.
Convertibfe Promissory Note

The security will convert into Class a voting common stock and the terms of the Conwvertible Promissory Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,252,175.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2023

Interest Rate: 10.0%

Discount Rate: 30.00%

Waluation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Option of the noteholder

Material Rights

1. Im case at any time or from time-to-time, the holders of the Notes shall have received, or (on or after the record date fixed for
determination of stockholders eligible to receive) shall have become entitled to receive, without pavment therefor: (1) other or additional
Common Stock or other securities or property (other than cash) by way of dividend; or (ii) any cash paid or pavable (including, without
limitation, by way of dividend), except out of earned surplus of the company; or (iii) other or additional (or less) stock or other securities or
property (including cash) by way of spin-off, split-up, reclassification, recapitalization, combination of shares, or similar corporate
rearrangement; then, and in each case, the registered holder of a Note, upon the exercise of his or her conversion privilege, shall be entitled
to receive the amount of Common Stock and other securities, and property (including cash in the cases referred to in subdivisions {ii) and



{iii) above) which the holder would receive on the date of the exercise if on the date hereof the holder had been the holder of record of the
number of shares of Common Stock into which this Mote may be converted, and had thereafter, during the period from the date hereof to
and including the date of the exercise, retained the shares and any other or additional (or less) stock and other securities and property
iincluding cash in the case peferred to in subdivisions (ii) and (iii) above) receivable by him or her during that period, giving effect to all
adjustments called for during that period by this paragraph.

2. In case the Company shall: (i) effect a reorganization; (ii) consolidate with or merge with any other person; or (iii) transfer all or
substantiallv all of its properties or assets to any other person under any plan or arrangement contemplating the dissolution of the
Company within twenty-four {24) months from the date of the transfer, then, in each case, the registered holder of a Note, upon exercise of
his or her conversion privilege within thirty (30) days after the consummation of the reorganization, consolidation, or merger or the
effective date of the dissolution, as the case may be, shall be entitled to receive, in lieu of the Commaon Stock issuable upon the exercise
prior to the consummation or the effective date, the stock and other securities and property to which the holder would have been entitled
upon the consummation or in connection with the dissolution, as the case may be, if the registered holder had so exercised his or her
conversion privilege immediately prior thereto, subject to further adjustment as provided in this paragraph. Upon any reorganization,
consolidation, merger, or transfer (and any dissolution following any transfer pursuant to this paragraph]), this Note, and the conversion
privileges appertaining thereto, shall continue in full force and effect and the terms thereof shall be applicable to the shares of stock and
other securities and property receivable upon exercise of the conversion privilege after consummation of the reorganization, consolidation,
merger, transfer, or dissolution, as the case may be, and shall be binding upon the issuer of any such stock or other securities including, in
the case of any such transfer, the person acquiring all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the company, whether or not that
person shall have expresshy assumed the terms of this Note,

3. If at least 51% of the outstanding balance of the Notes are so converted at any time, the Company shall have the right to require the
remainder of the Notes to be converted into Common Stock.

4, Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the MNote, a Mote holder shall be prohibited from converting into shares of Commaon Stock, if
such conversion would cause the holder to have aggregate holdings as to require the holder to file SEC Form 13(d) or 13(g). Such restriction
may be waived by mutual consent of the Note holder and the Company. Such restriction shall not apply in the event of a merger,
reorganization, acquisition change of control, or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company in which the holders of the
Company's capital stock hold less than 50% of the voting power of the surviving entity.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of the company, you will have no voting rights in regards to the corporate actions of the company, including additional
issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or company transactions with
related parties. Further, investors in this offering may have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a company could be diluted due to the company issuing
additional shares. In other words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that vou own will go down, even
though the value of the company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares
outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round,
angel investment), emplovees exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or
warrants) into stock, If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth
less than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends, and most early

stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
# [nan [PO;
# Tothe company;
& Toan accredited investor; and

# Toa member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit
of a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the purchaser or other
similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

& Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $265,000.00
MNumber of Securities Sold: 530,000
Use of proceeds: Inventory, salaries in preparation for a big Q4,/2021.
Date: August 20, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

* Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $1,244,675.80



Use of proceeds: Debt restructuring
Date: December 31, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

» Mame: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $4,273, 196,00
Number of Securities Sold: 4,273,196
Use of proceeds: R&D and working capital
Date: February 24, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 504(h)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the folfowing discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations together with our financial
statements and related notes appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-looking statements
reffecting our current expectations that invalve risks and uncertainties. Actual resufrs and the timing of events may differ materially from
those contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including those discussed in the section entitied "Risk
Factors™ and efsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
Revenue

Met revenue for fiscal yvear 2021 was $921,332, up compared to fiscal vear 2020 net revenue of 3697,363 which was a direct result of the
senior living market picking up in the 4th quarter. The US rehab, fitness, sports and vouth markets remain primarily shut down.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales in 2021 was $274,224, an increase of approximately $50,000, from costs of $224,146 in fiscal year 2020. The reduction was
largely due to the decrease in revenue as well as the reduction of operations and sales staff.

Gross margins
2021 gross profit was $646,557 compared with $473,218 in 2020 which is in line with the increased revenue and cost of sales.

Expenses

Expenses in 2021 were £3,13%9,640 a decrease of 387,983 from 2020's expenses of $3,227,623. Of note, in both vears, just over $1,300,000
reflects the amortization of the license purchase fee which was purchased in 2016, The balance of the decrease reflects the company's cost
cutting actions during the Covid-19 shutdowns by the government.

The Company's expenses consist of, among other things, emplovee compensation, marketing and sales expenses, fees for professional
services, and imvestment in research and development which is expensed.

Due to the pandemic, the decision was made to continue the company's investment in research and development as well as maintaining
manufacturing capability to service incoming orders. In particular, extra investment was made to fast track a brain health solution for
seniors who were confined to their rooms. This proved highly successful in the company’s 2021 4th quarter recovery.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently in the initial production stage; and revenue generating. We believe the historical cash flows are not necessarily
indicative of the revenue and cash flows expected for the future because the Company's revenues have increased to near break-even levels,
Past cash was primarily generated through sales and equity investments. Our goal is to become profitable in 2022 and to accelerate
manufacturing capability to support anticipated increasing demand for our products.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand, existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of April 4, 2022, the Company has capital resources available in the form of credit card lines of credit for $56,000 from Capital One (836k)
and Barclay (320k). Furthermore, the Company has access to a shareholder line of credit in the amount of $220,000 with an outstanding
balance of $73,000. Cash on hand is § 142,508.96 with $66,000 in collectible revenue due upon shipments in April 2022, Additional loans
from related parties are available on an as-needed basis.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these funds critical to your company operations? Or do you
have other funds or capital resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are not critical to our company operations.

We have other funds and capital resources available, in addition to the funds from this Regulation Crowdfunding campaign, to cover any
revenue shortfalls, until the Company becomes consistently cash flow positive.



Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the total funds that your company has, how much of that
will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are not necessary to the viability of the Company. Management plans to use the proceeds from the
crowdiunding campaign to accelerate growth. IFwe meet our funding goal, of the total funds that our Company has, approximately 765
will be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign.

How long will you be able to operate the company if vou raise your minimum? What expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will be able to operate indefinitely based on revenues
and additional loans and equity investment available from related parties. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of $120,000 for
expenses related to all operations and R&D. The founders plan to continue to fund any cash-flow shortfalls until the company is
consistently revenue positive.

How long will you be able to operate the company if vou raise your maximum funding goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will be able to operate indefinitely. Investment funds
will be used to expand manufacturing capacity and accelerate sales. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of $120,000 for expenses
related to all operations and R&D,

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company? (Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated
future capital raises, etc...)

Currently, the Company has not contemplated additional future sources of capital, other than another crowdfunding round within 18
months or additional capital from related parties.

Indebtedness

» Creditor: SMARTTit Shareholders Conv Note
Amount Owed: $1,252,175.82
Interest Rate: 10.0%
Matwrity Date: December 31, 2023

# Creditor: Multisensory Technology Inc.
Amount Owed: $100,000.07
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2022

# Creditor: Peter Lamberti
Amount Owed: 3124, 806.62
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2022

» Creditor: SMARTIit Active LLC
Amount Owed: $1589,225.52
Interest Rabe: 4.5%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2022

# Creditor: Connie Stomper
Amount Owed: $100,170.50
Interest Rate: 10.0%

Mo maturity date

* Creditor: Palius and O'Keefe
Amount Owed: 32,495.00
Interest Rate: 5.0%

Mo maturity date

# Creditor: Tamara Boucar and Dave Moitis
Amount Owed: $52,224.51
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Mo maturity date

# Creditor: Catherine B Lamberti
Amount Owed: $72,683.49
Interest Rate: 5.0%

Mo maturity date

# Creditor: Mile 13 LLC
Armount Owed: 320,000,000



Interest Rate: 5.0%
Mo maturity date

Creditor: EIDL Loan

Amount Cwed: $ 160,000,000
Interest Rate: 3.75%

Matwrity Date: June 17, 2050
Currently no payments required

Creditor: PPP - Znd Draw
Amount Cwed: $171,210.00
Interest Rabe: 1.0%
Applving for Forgiveness

Creditor: Jack Beed

Amount Owed: $30,000.00
Interest Rate: 8.0%

Maturity Date: February 11, 2022

Creditor: Gina Sunseri

Amount Owed: 35,000.00
Interest Rate: 5.0%

Maturity Date: February 11, 2022

Creditor: Dorothy Dege Donati
Amount Cwed: $5,000.00
Interest Rate: 8.0%

Matwrity Date: February 11, 2022

Related Party Transactions

Mame of Entity: Smartfit Active LLC

Mames of 20% owners: Catherine B Lamberti - SMARTH is also a member of SMARTIAL Active LLC

Relationship to Company: Joint Venture

Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: SMARTFit Active LLC is the lender of up to $191,000 in this joint venture,
Materlal Terms: see attached operating agreement.

Name of Entity: Multisensory Technologies Inc.

MNames of 20% owners: Catherine B Lamberti

Relationship to Company: Creditor

Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: Sale of Intellectual Property in exchange for royalty.

Material Terms: Note pavable of $100,000, unsecured, pavable in full, including interest at 6%, on December 31, 2022, The rovalty is a
contingent liability based on future sales.

Name of Entity: Peter Lamberti

Relationship to Company: Family member

Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: Note Payable $124,807

Material Terms: Unsecured, pavable in full, including interest at 8%, on December 31, 2022

Mame of Entity: LT Debt from Existing Shareholders
Relationship to Company: Existing Shareholders
Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: Convertible Note - principal 31,252,175

Material Terms: Convertible Note, secured by property of the Company and payable in full, including interest at 10%, on December
31, 2023.

Mame of Entity: Catherine B Lamberti

Relationship to Company: CED, Director, 20%+ Owner

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Line of credit of approximately $73,000
Material Terms: Line of credit, unsecured, no maturity date, interest at 5%,

Mame of Entity: Mile 13 LLC

Mames of 20% owners: Owner was an officer, director and promoter at the time the loan was made.
Relationship to Company: Promoter, Officer and Director at the time the loan was made.

Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: Line of credit of 540,000,

Material Terms: Line of credit, unsecured, no maturity date, including interest at 5%.

Name of Entity: Connie Stomper

Relationship to Company: Shareholder
Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: Unsecured term loan for $100,171
Material Terms: Unsecured term loan, no maturity date, interest at 10% p.a.

Name of Entity: Palius & O'Keefe
Mames of 20% owners: none



Relationship to Company: Liability acquired from predecessor
Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: Pavable 2,495
Material Terms: Unsecured, pavable, no maturity date, interest at 5% p.a.

» Mame of Entity: Tamara Boucar
Relationship to Company: Liability acguired from predecessor
Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: Loan $13,980
Material Terms: Loan, unsecured, no maturity date, interest at 8% p.a.

» Name of Entity: David Moitis
Relationship to Company: Liahility acquired from predecessor
Mature / amount of interest in the transaction: Loan for $38,244
Material Terms: Loan, unsecured, no maturity date, interest at 8% p.a.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: 54%,143,293.%0
Valuation Details:

In attempting to put a value on our company™s business and technology, taking into account the immensity of its market opportunities
coupled with its first-to-market advantage, along with the many risk factors, management considered but found it impractical to calculate

a fair value of the business at this time using only typical valuation methods such as a discounted stream of estimated possible profits, a
multiple of future EBITDA, or comparable valuations in the industry .

Estimating possible future profits or future EBITDA cannot be done at this time due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Our company is in the early
stages of opening only two of its six potential markets (rehabs and assisted living, which are somewhat insulated from the effects of the
pandemic). Our company cannot predict, however, when it will ramp-up in the other four markets (commercial fitness, sports, youth
fitness/education, and the home fitness markets) because it is impossible to know how long the pandemic will last.

Management did review three comparable companies in the commercial and home fitness industries, with valuations ranging from 528
million to $80+ million. These companies included Liteboxer, Helix, and MacVon. While this information provided general guidance, these
three companies offer only one or two product lines covering only one or two of the potential markets (not including the reliab or assisted
living markets). Our company has multiple product lines with potential opportunities in at least six different markets.

We believe our company 15 more comparable to Peleton, which (after its acquisition of Precor) has multiple product lines in multiple
markets, Peleton is presently valued at $30+Bn with annual sales of 31Bn, a multiple of 30 times revenue, Our 4021 sales revenue may
indicate a 15x multiple, but a multiple of annual revenue is not appropriate for our company because, until mid-2021, our company was
focused on using customer feedback to complete research and development. The company has now started to ramp up sales in the two
markets most insulated from the effects of the pandemic, as mentioned above, but is prepared to ramp-up the other markets when
appropriate.

Our company's proprietary technology includes the company’s operating svstem, multiple market applications, app-based user interface,
HIPAA-compliant Cloud database (currently gathering the first of its kind cognitive-motor data), multi-site management, and hardware
product lines, which are all ready for market. Over the last six months, the company has achieved solid market acceptance, with
accelerating sales from repeat customers (our largest customer has taken delivery of 60 systems in just the past five months).

We therefore believe that the primary drivers of the current fair enterprise value of our company include significant intangible assets, such
as our developed platform intellectual property, market acceptance of our products, our knowledge and experience, our ongoing business
relationships, our independent clinical research relationships, and our first-mover advantage.

Considering the factors discussed above, management has estimated a pre-money valuation of around $49 Million USD, strictly for the
purpose of this offering, caleulated based on our fully diluted share capitalization (including stock options issued or reserved for issuance
under equity incentive plans and outstanding warrants).

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully difuted basis. In making this calculation, we have assumed:
(1 all preferred stock is converted o commaorn stock; amd

(i all outstanding vested options and warrants are exercised; and

In making this calculation we have not assumed;

(i} any shares reserved for isspance under a stock plan are issued; an

(I} anyv unvested aptions are exercised.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities currently outstanding. The Company currently has
S1,.252 17500 {n Convertible Notes outstanding. Please refer o the Company Securities section of the Offering Memovandum Ffor further
details regarding current outstanding convertible securities wihich may affect vour ownership in the future.

Thiz was determined internally by the company, without an independent third-party valuation.
Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999. 36 we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

o StantEngine Platform Fees



3.5%

® StartEngine Fees
96.5%
atartEngine Fees

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,069,999.84, we plan to use these proceeds as follows:

® StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

*  [nventory
40.0%
Electronics and hardware purchases to fulfill projected sales.

& (peralions
20.0r%
Factory operating costs including labor to support sales growth and engineering costs to keep refining and improving the product
lines.

& Sales, Marketing, Customer Support
20.0%
Staff Cost to support sales growth

& Working Capital
16.5%
Admindstrative costs

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

Mo disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or directors.
Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Rerulation Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its website no later than April 30 (120 davs after
Fiscal Year End). Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company's website at https://www.smartfitinc.com/
(www. smartfitinc.com/annualreport).

The Company must continue te comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer than three hundred (3007 halders of record
and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

i4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4(aW6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in
full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5} it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.,

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.comy/smartfit

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a part.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
SMARTFIt, Inc.
Camarillo, California

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of SMARTfit, Inc. (the "Company,”), which comprise
the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, and the related statement of operations,
statement of shareholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year ending December 31, 2021 and December,
2020, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures
to management's financial data and making inquiries of company management. A review is substantially less in
scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as
a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Accountant’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’'s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Going Concern

As discussed in Note 14, certain conditions indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concearn.

Ssa'hﬂrparl: F%

March 31, 2022
Los Angeles, California




SMARTFIT INC.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

BALANCE SHEET
(UNAUDITED)
As of December 31, 2021 2020
(USD S in Dollars)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents 5 22617 8,271
Acccounts Receivable, net 9,373 74,588
Inventories 190,783 199,478
Prepaids and Other Current Assets 34,263 31,518
Total Current Assets 257,036 313,856
Property and Equipment, net 54,232 24,170
Intangible Assets 2,518,826 3,835,900
Security Deposit 32,675 39,205
Total Assets 5 2,862,770 4,213,131
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 5 235,110 273,275
Credit Card 26,753 30,822
Current Portion of Loans and Notes 649,439 321,890
Other Current Liabilities 680,255 258,368
Total Current Liabilities 1,591,557 884,355
Promissory Notes and Loans 325,877 284 807
Convertible Mote 1,344,676 1,344,676
Accured Interest on Loans and Notes 201,928 37,497
Accrued Royalties 9,028,110 9,072,700
Total Liabilities 12,492,147 11,624,035
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Common Stock - Class A 322,551 317,251
Additional Paid in Capital 6,837,338 6,426,533
Retained Earnings/(Accumulated Deficit) (16,789,267 (14,154, 688)
Total Stockholders' Equity (9,629,378) (7,410,904)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity S 2,862,770 & 4,213,131




SMARTFIT INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

For Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

(USD S in Dollars)
Net Revenue
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross profit

Operating expenses
General and Administrative
Research and Development
Sales and Marketing
Total operating expenses

Operating Income/(Loss)

Interest Expense
Other Loss/({Income)

Income/(Loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision/(Benefit) for income taxes

Net Income/(Net Loss)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2021 2020
921,382 5 697,363
274,825 224,146
646,557 473,218

2,531,489 2,509,305
515,206 603,208

92,945 115,110
3,139,640 3,227,623
(2,493,084) (2,754,406)

165,662 66,573

(24,167) (371,210)
(2,634,579) (2,449,769)
(2,634,579) $ (2,449,769)




SMARTFIT INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS” EQuUITY

(UNAUDITED)

aarnings)

Comrmon Stock - Class A Additianal Pasd In {Accumulated Takal Sharehalder
{in , SUS) Shares Amount Capital Dreficit] Equity
Balance—December 31, 2019 31,575066 % 315751 5 5,707,984 5 (11,704,919} & {5,681,184)
Issuance of Stock 533334 5333 I7TR,271 383 604
Repurchase of shares (383.334) {3,833} [3.833)
Share-Based Compensatian 40,278 340 27E
et incormey [loss) {2,449, 769) {2,449 769)
Balance=—December 31, 2020 31725066 5 317,251 5 6,426,533 3 (14,154 588) 5 (7410904}
Issuance of Stock SEa 000 9 GED 250 T 2648, 380
Regurchase of shares (438 000) |4, 380} [4.380)
Share-Based Compensation 151,106 151,105
Met incomey (loss) (2,634,579} 12,634579)
Balance—Decamber 31, 2021 32,255,066 % 322551 5 5E37, 338 b (16,789,267} & {9,629, 378)

Ser acoompanping notes o finonoia! statements.



SMARTFIT InC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows

(UNAUDITED)

For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
(USD S in Dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income/(loss) 5 (2,634,579) %(2,449,769)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided/(used) by operating octivities:
Depreciation of Property 21,977 26,734
Amortization of Intangibles 1,317,074 1,318,741
Share-based Compensation 151,105 340,278
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Acccounts Receivable, net 65,214 (70,820)
Inventaries 2,696 6,996
Prepaids and Other Current Assets (2,744) 1,175
Accounts Payable (3B,165) {39,110)
Credit Card {4,069) 1,346
Accrued Royalties (44,590) 15470
Other Current Liabilities 421,888 (421,541)
Security Deposit 6,530 -
Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities (731,664) (1,270,500)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property and Equipment (52,039) 1,054
Net cash provided/{used) in investing activities (52,039) 1,054
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of Stock 269,380 383,604
Repurchase of shares (4,380) (3,833)
Borrowing on Promissory Notes and Loans 533,049 (458,186)
Net cash provided/(used) by financing activities 798,049 (78.415)
Change in Cash 14,346 (1,347 ,861)
Cash—beginning of year 8,271 11,456
Cash—end of year 5 22,617 5(1,336,405)
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest 5 165662 5 66,573
Cash paid during the year for income taxes 5 5
OTHER NOMCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Purchase of property and equipment not yet paid for 5 - 5 -

Issuance of equity in return for note

Issuance of equity in return for accrued payroll and other liabilities

See gccompanying notes to financlol statements.



SMARTFIT INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 3n1I 2021 AND DECEMBER 31, 2020

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

SMARTTFit Inc. was incorporated on May 16, 2013, in the state of California as Multisensory Fitness Inc. On October 7,
2016, Multisensory Fitness Inc. changed its name to SMARTfit Inc, The financial statements of SMARTTit Inc. (which may
be referred to as the "Company”, "we”, “us”, or “our”) are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("U.5. GAAP"). The Company's headquarters are located in Camarillo,
California.

SMARTfit Inc. is a fitness company developed by industry experts that combines brain and physical health with functional
fitness and sports performance training technology. SMARTfit Inc. adds to the power of dual task [cognitive motor)

training by delivering all activities using gamification, which increases both engagement and enjoyment, and in turn,
produces quick results.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("US GAAPY). The Company has adopted the calendar year as its basis of reporting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period, Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash in banks. The Company’s cash is deposited in demand accounts at financial
institutions that management believes are creditworthy., The Company’s cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit
accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the
Company's cash and cash equivalents did not exceed FDIC insured limits.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value or the amount that the Company expects to collect on gross
customer trade receivables. We estimate losses on receivables based on known troubled accounts and historical
experience of losses incurred. Receivables are considered impaired and written-off when it is probable that all
contractual payments due will not be collected in accordance with the terms of the agreement. As of December 31,
2021, and 2020, the Company determined that no reserve was necessary.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs related to finished goods and computer parts
which are determined using an average method.



SMARTFIT INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 3n1I 2021 AND DECEMBER 31, 2020

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to earnings as incurred
and additions and major improvements are capitalized. The cost of assets retired or otherwise disposed of, and the
related depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the period of disposal and the resulting gain or loss is credited
or charged to earnings.

Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the related asset type or term of the operating lease using
the straight-line method for financial statement purposes. The estimated service lives for property and equipment are
as follows:

Category Useful Life
Maolds and Tooling 5-7 years
Camera Equipment 5-7 years
Computers 5-7 years
Demo Units 5-7 years
Vehicles 5-7 years
Factory Equipment 5-7 years
Leasehold Improvements 10-15 years

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and identifiable intangibles with finite useful lives, are periodically
evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. We look for indicators of a trigger event for asset impairment and pay special attention to any
adverse change in the extent or manner in which the asset is being used or in its physical condition. Assets are grouped
and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level of which there are identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a
location level. Assets are reviewed using factors including, but not limited to, our future operating plans and projected
cash flows. The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash
flows directly related to the assets, compared to the carrying value of the assets. If the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows of the assets does not exceed the carrying value of the assets, full or partial impairment may exist. If the asset
carrying amount exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined using an income approach, which requires discounting the
estimated future cash flows associated with the asset,

Intangible Assets

The company entered into a technology purchase agreement, effective January 1, 2017, to purchase technology. The
purchase agreement requires the company to pay a fixed fee of 5130 per main controlling unit (CCU) on the first 1,250
CCUs sold or leased and 5100 per CCU thereafter through December 31, 2026, or until an aggregate 520,000,000 has
been paid. The technology acquired was capitalized at the net present value of the contingent consideration
management expects to pay under the agreement. The technology is presented as an intangible asset valued, which will
be amortized, on a straight-line basis, over a period of seven years.



SMARTFIT INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 3n1I 2021 AND DECEMBER 31, 2020

Income Taxes

SMARTFit, Inc. is a C corporation for income tax purposes. The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability
method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is provided on deferred tax assets if it is determined that
it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company records interest, net of any
applicable related income tax benefit, on potential income tax contingencies as a component of income tax expense,
The Campany records tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return based upon the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized or paid, including in connection with the resolution of any related appeals or other legal
processes, Accordingly, the Company recognizes liabilities for certain unrecognized tax benefits based on the amounts
that are more likely than not to be settled with the relevant taxing authority. The Company recognizes interest and/or
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America which it
believes to be creditworthy. Balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to 5250,000. At
times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues in accordance with FASB ASC 606, revenue from contracts with customers, when
delivery of goods is the sole performance obligation in its contracts with customers. The Company typically collects
payment upon sale and recognizes the revenue when the item has shipped and has fulfilled its sole performance
obligation.

Revenue recognition, according to Topic 606, is determined using the following steps:

1) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with the customer: the Company determines the existence of a
contract with a customer when the contract is mutually approved; the rights of each party in relation to the
services to be transferred can be identified, the payment terms for the services can be identified, the customer
has the capacity and intention to pay, and the contract has commercial substance.

2] Identification of performance obligations in the contract: performance obligations consist of a promised in a
contract (written or oral) with a customer to transfer to the customer either a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and
that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

3) Recognition of revenue when, or how, a performance obligation is met: revenues are recognized when or as
control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers.

The Company earns revenues from the sale of its user-friendly neuro-cognitive fitness technology device to address a
broad range of markets in a single customizable app.



SMARTFIT INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND Decemeer 31, 2020

Cost of sales

Costs of goods sold include the cost of equipment sold, components, labor, packaging, and supplies.

Advertising and Promotion

Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotional expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, amounted to 592,945 and $115,110, which is included in sales and
marketing expenses,

Research and Development Costs

Costs incurred in the research and development of the Company’s products are expensed as incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to both employee and non-employees in accordance with ASC
718, Compensation - Stock Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense
ratably over the requisite service period, which is generally the option vesting period. The Company uses the Black-
Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company's financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities (such as cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments).

The inputs used to measure fair value are based on a hierarchy that prioritizes observable and uncbservable inputs used
in valuation techniques. These levels, in order of highest to lowest priority, are described below:

Level 1—Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2—0Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets but corroborated by market data.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company's assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions
made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

COVID-19

In March 2020, the outbreak and spread of the COVID-19 virus was classified as a global pandemic by the World Health
Organization. This widespread disease impacted the Company’s business operations, including its employees,
customers, vendors, and communities. The COVID-19 pandemic may continue to impact the Company’'s business
operations and financial operating results, and there is substantial uncertainty in the nature and degree of its continued
effects over time. The extent to which the pandemic impacts the business going forward will depend on numerous
evolving factors management cannot reliably predict, including the duration and scope of the pandemic; governmental,
business, and individuals' actions in response to the pandemic; and the impact on economic activity including the
possibility of recession or financial market instability. These factors may adversely impact consumer and business
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spending on products as well as customers' ability to pay for products and services on an ongoing basis. This uncertainty
also affects management’s accounting estimates and assumptions, which could result in greater variability in a variety
of areas that depend on these estimates and assumptions, including investments, receivables, and forward-looking
guidance.

Subsequent Events

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but prior to the issuance of the
financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require
additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 31, 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were issued.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

FASB issued ASU No. 2019-02, leases, that requires organizations that lease assets, referred to as "lessees"”, to recognize
on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases with lease terms of
more than twelve months. ASU 2019-02 will also require disclosures to help investors and other financial statement
users better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases and will include
gualitative and quantitative requirements. The new standard for nonpublic entities will be effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, and
early application is permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on the financial
statements and related disclosures.

The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs to date, including
those above, that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (i} provide
supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to us or (iv) are not expected to have a
significant impact on our financial statements.

3. INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020

Finished Goods 65,737 81,284
Computer Parts 116,861 113,735
Third Party Products 8,185 4 460
Total Inventories 5 190,783 S5 199478

- 10 -



SMARTEFIT INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND Decemeer 31, 2020

4. DETAILS OF CERTAIN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Accounts receivable consist primarily of trade receivables and accounts payable consist primarily of trade payables.
Prepaid and other current assets consist of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020

Prepaid Expenses 22,291 9,745
Deposits on Purchase Orders 11,971 21,773
Total Prepaids and Other Current Assets S 34,263 S§ 31,518

Other current liabilities consist of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Customers Deposit 94,465 111,880
Accrued Payable 131,084 38,186
Tax Payable 2,451 2,452
Payroll Payable 370,523 105,850
SMARTTit Active License Fees 18,032 -
MTI Actual Accrual Since 2018 63,700 -
Total Other Current Liabilities % 680,255 S 258,368

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, property and equipment consists of:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020

Maolds and Tooling 5 98,050 5 45,550
Camera Equipment 2,687 2,687
Computers 8,218 8,218
Demo Units 30,389 30,850
Vehicles 13,515 13,515
Factory Equipment 2,449 2,449
Leasehold Improvements 8,143 8,143
Property and Equipment, at Cost 163,451 111,411
Accumulated depreciation {109,219) (87,241)
Property and Equipment, Net s 54,232 S 24,170

Depreciation expenses for property and equipment for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and 2020 were in the
amount of 521,977 and 526,734 respectively.

-11 -
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND ACCRUED ROYALTIES

The Company has utilized technology from a related party since June 1, 2013, under a licensing agreement. The company
entered into a technology purchase agreement, effective January 1, 2017, to purchase technology. The purchase
agreement requires the company to pay fixed fee of 5130 per main controlling unit (CCU) on the first 1,250 CCUs sold
or leased, and 5100 per CCU thereafter through December 31, 2026, or until an aggregate 520,000,000 been paid.

As part of the technology acquisition, the company recognized the contingent consideration at the fair value of the
expected royalty payments, which were based on unit sales projections. The royalty liability was recorded at the net
present value of the future payments a 12% weighted average cost of capital. No royalty payment has been made as of
December 31, 2021.

The technology acquired was capitalized at the net present value of the contingent consideration management expects
to pay under the agreement. The technology is presented as an intangible asset valued at 59,051,498 in the
accompanying balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, The company has elected to amortize, on a straight-
line basis over a period of seven years,

As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, intangible assets consist of:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020

smartFit Technology acquired 5 9,028,110 5 9,028,110
R & D Consulting - UL/CE 23,388 23,388
Intangible assets, at cost 9,051,498 9,051,498
Accumulated amortization (6,532,672) (5,215,597)
Intangible assets, Net 5 2,518,826 5 3,835,900

Entire intangible assets have been amortized. Amortization expenses for SMARTfit technology and R&D consulting for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and 2020 were in the amount of 51,317,074 and 51,318,741 respectively.

The following table summarizes the estimated amortization expenses relating to the Company's intangible assets as of
December 31, 2021;

Period Amortization Expense
2022 g 1,317,074
2023 1,201,752
2024 .
2025 -
Thereafter -
Total 5 2,518,826

Accrued royalties were 59,028,110 and 59,072,700 as of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, respectively.

- 12 -
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7. CAPITALIZATION AND EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

Commeon Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 80,000,000 shares of Common Stock designated as “Class A Voting Common Stock”™
and 10,000,000 shares of Common Stock designated as “Class B Non-voting Common Stock™ with a par value of 0.015.
As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, 32,255,066 shares and 31,725,066 shares of Class A Voting Common
Stock, and 0 shares of Class B Non-voting Common Stock have been issued and are outstanding.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of Preferred Shares with $0.01 par value. As of December 31,
2021, and December 31, 2020, 0 shares of Preferred Shares have been issued and are outstanding.

8. SHAREBASED COMPENSATION

During 2017, the Company authorized the Stock Option Plan {which may be referred to as the “Plan”). The Company
reserved 15,000,000 shares of its Common Stock pursuant to the Plan, which provides the grant of shares of stock
options, stock appreciation rights, and stock awards (performance shares) to employees, non-employee directors, and
non-employee consultants. The option exercise price generally may not be less than the underlying stock's fair market
value at the date of the grant and generally have a term of eight years. The amounts granted each calendar year to an
employee or nonemployee is limited depending on the type of award.

Stock Options

The Company granted stock options. The stock options were valued using the Black-5choles pricing model with a range
of inputs indicated below:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021
Expected life (years) 8.00
Risk-free interest rate 2.50%
Expected volatility 75%
Annual dividend yield 0%

The risk-free interest rate assumption for options granted is based upon observed interest rates on the United States
government securities appropriate for the expected term of the Company's employee stock options.

The expected term of employee stock options is calculated using the simplified method which takes into consideration
the contractual life and vesting terms of the options.

The Company determined the expected volatility assumption for options granted using the historical volatility of
comparable public company's Common Stock. The Company will continue to monitor peer companies and other relevant
factors used to measure expected volatility for future stock option grants, until such time that the Company’s common
stock has enough market history to use historical volatility.

The dividend yield assumption for options granted is based on the Company's history and expectation of dividend
payouts. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its commeon stock, and the Company does not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

-13 -
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Management estimated the fair value of Common 5tock based on recent sales to third parties. Forfeitures are
recognized as incurred.

A summary of the Company’s stock options activity and related information is as follows:

Weighted Weighted Average

Number of Awards Average Exercise Contract Term
Outstanding at December 31, 2019 10,313,279 5§ 0.16 -
Granted 3,171,673
Execised .
Expired/Cancelled (3,530,000) -
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 9,954,952 5 0.16 5.64
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2020 9,954,952 5 0.16 5.64
Granted 80,000 5 -
Execised - 5 -
Expired/Cancelled (110,000} S -
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 9,924,952 5 0.16 4.64
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2021 9,924,952 5 0.16 4.64

Stock option expenses for the years ended December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020 were 5105,998 and $286,413,
respectively.

Warrants
A summary of the Company’s warrants activity and related information is as follows:

Weighted Average  Weighted Average

Number of Awards Exercise Contract Term
Outstanding at December 31, 2019 1,600,000 S 0.16 -
Granted 75,000
Execised -
Expired/Cancelled - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 1,675,000 & 0.16 6.48
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2020 1,675,000 5 0.16 6.48
Granted 530,000 5 -
Execised - 5 -
Expired/Cancelled (91,000) & -
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 2,114,000 § 0.16 5.48
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2021 2,114,000 S 0.16 5.48

Warrants expenses for the years ended December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020 were 545,107 and 553,865,
respectively.

_14_
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9. DEBT

Promissory Notes & Loans

During the years presented, the Company entered into promissory notes & loans agreements. The details of the
Company's loans, notes, and the terms are as follows:

Far the Fesr Ceded Decam bar 3020 For tha Yesr [nded Decomizer 2030
Tedal
R IR Arereed Ciavenl Pari-C TR L Tensl R IR Aaerandl Larmenn Hae-Curmem  iradelitecnad
Dkl Irmloregrd By Frindpal A oian imereat R dornoaiag Fened dmanioy Dues i Parik Foitian indebivdaeie | Fapeias IRr#rear Fosmen Partion E
Fonraamay gy [REME8Y Lo & 14208 1754 wuik-1 [0 w2050 5 RN & &0 § ERCEE B ANdEET B IR0DOO |5 R0 § AN 5 OARLEN 5 TROGED
CRAS AT PPP LOAR H 171213 1.06T% A0EL loaghemie H22] 5 1,712 % 1712 H] iz = 1T 210 - - - - -
fercared Cans HF-Feiss Fermelat 5 150 1106 1S4 i aet] 5 215 5 13T 5 25m F - & 7.500 | 5 AIT 5 2547 5 150§ - % TR
2o el P H - P Lt - L4 =y EETH LT 13aimae) & TARE & Gy § a4 g 1dapnor L 4 13empT 2 124l
Line of cred it - . Larnbrid 13 7 500% 12/3,/2060 ronet] $  IA1 5 J4N2 5 A7LED 5 5  ER.LER - . & s & - $ 14580
T Lot - hilg 1% 1L & A5 K] 50 LuELR 0 ) 5 R S Q5§ a5 & L {0 7 3 L) § I 11 ]
Tarmm Lossn - SEHAATR fectiom LLC - e 4. 50% L2318 1030 o aet] ES4E I 4581 5§ 13 % T O1EmIIE |3 L 5 108 % B 5 % O
Harieg Paryabbe - Corwie SIOInpeT & 132,171 SR NI o] 5 10037 5 HAIS B 10QATL F f imAM | s EREE 5 Ak@ §  1MLATL 6 [T R EE]
Hale Pagaizhr - Palin arad By i 1.4y 1% [ ITESRH G L o art] % HEL EM 5 24 i 2am |k L2y § rem 4 24w 4 5 143
Mais Pagaie- Tarmar Rcascar 3 IR O 39,3000 raet] 50 LMIR 5 MAm2 F laged § 5 1aken | $ LKA 5 Raam § Laken § % 133D
Male Fanahe Cuwe Bidls g 38 a4 EIXTH LS mode] % LOED & ks § aIss 4§ £ dmada|d L8R & lAtEA 4 Eajea § T T
Shart Terme Lear Jadk Besd H ] LTS, LLI11fI0GL 1101/5121) % 12F 5 =5 BIDEE] % & MDD || & - H H H H -
S Tedms Lian Giag Sais & LR EInri LR 192 s 55 & 55 5 A & S0 |5 § & § 5
H 5.3 LO3% LLi 1% I0T1 11,/13'3323) = 33 5 ] SO % - H 000 5 - H H H H -
% 1T § TAARr 8 Amagim o 335877 4  STANIE |2 QESST 4 S0deF 8RB0 8 IR g0T 2 ppegaY
The summary of the future maturities is as follows:
As of Year Ended December 31, 2021
2022 5 649,439
2023 2,333
2024 5,333
2025 5,333
2026 5,333
Thereafter 304,543
Total & 975,316
Convertible Note(s]
The following is the summary of the convertible notes:
Fed thie Yicar Endied Didesbier D11 Foof BB Yieai Eniihiil Dhbiiviliaed 2OTL
Fringpad  Ielereit P alurely IrlErEt Axiraed Cairal Won{ureen Total Irfe it Apraed furem MenCumist bl
Oiebre imraresni Hame AFEFRIRE Rate oo ing Psriad Cue Fupe=ras imprss Frarthas Frartine indrmirdri-in | Fapeas imprse Parilan Partien Irads ks e e
N0 Crareeriishs Wobey dearicay briden| L1030 BOUDORS Fscal Year 020 FETE e ] ETECT! 133,840 = 1,144.676 LATRS1G 2547 1,547 0N 5 LMALTE ETEEE:]
Toeal [ - §  INLIE] § 131840 % - % LIAGIE § 147R51G |5 Z547 § 1547 5 100080 5 LOMAETE § LMIIT

The convertible notes are secured by substantially all assets of the company; however, the convertible notes are
subordinated to creditors in the ordinary course of business and any bank debt. At any time, six months or less prior to
the maturity date (or upon earlier notice of repayment by the company), a purchaser may convert the outstanding
principal amount of any note, together with the interest accrued thereon, into shares of the Company’'s Common Stock
at the conversion price based on 70% of the then —current company valuation, as determined by the Board of Directors
in good faith.
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10. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, consists of the following:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020

Met Operating Loss 5 (744,269) 5 (366,525)
Valuation Allowance 744,269 366,525
Net Provision for income tax 5 - 5 -

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities on December 31, 2021, and December 31,
2020 are as follows:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020

Net Operating Loss 5 (1,668,162) 5 (923,893)
Valuation Allowance 1,668,162 923,893
Total Deferred Tax Asset 3 - 5 -

Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if sufficient future taxable income will
be generated to use the existing deferred tax assets. On the basis of this evaluation, the Company has determined that
it is more likely than not that the Company will not recognize the benefits of the federal and state net deferred tax
assets, and, as a result, full valuation allowance has been set against its net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2021,
and December 31, 2020. The amount of the deferred tax asset to be realized could be adjusted if estimates of future
taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced or increased.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, the Company had federal cumulative net operating loss ["NOL")
carryforwards of $5,904,998, and the Company had state net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards of approximately
55,904,998, Utilization of some of the federal and state NOL carryforwards to reduce future income taxes will depend
on the Company's ability to generate sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration of the carryforwards. The federal
net operating loss carryforward is subject to an 80% limitation on taxable income, does not expire, and will carry on
indefinitely.

The Company recognizes the impact of a tax position in the financial staterments if that position is more likely than not
to be sustained on a tax return upon examination by the relevant taxing authority, based on the technical merits of the
position. As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the Company had no accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain
tax positions.

11. RELATED PARTY

During the past, the company entered into multiple loan agreements with their shareholders i.e., Cath Lamberti, Matt
Kelly, Gerry Lambert, Leslie Brtek, Jack Reed, Jim Manley, Eric Pommer, Kristine Freck, Dorothy Donati, Wittmer-Grant,
Bill Kehoe, Mile 13, MTI, P. Lamberti, and Gina Suns. As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the outstanding
balance of Promissory Notes and loans were 5644,106 and 5446,697, respectively.
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During the past, the Company entered into convertible promissory notes with their shareholders i.e., Cath Lamberti,
Matt Kelly, Gerry Lambert, Leslie Brtek, Jack Reed, lim Manley, Eric Pommer, Kristine Freck, Dorothy Donati, Wittmer-
Grant, Bill Kehoe, Mile 13, MTI, P. Lamberti, and Gina Suns. As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the
outstanding balance of Promissory Notes and loans were 51,344,676 and 51,344,676, respectively.

SMARTTit Active LLC is the lender of up to $191,000 to SMARTfit Inc. and Cathi Lamberti and SMARTfit Inc. are members
of SMARTfit Active LLC.

12, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

The Company entered into a commercial multi-tenant lease on February 17, 2021, with Felsenthal Property
Management, Inc., a California corporation as an Agent for San Pablo Industrial Investments, LLC, a California limited
liahility company to an undivided 52.2068% interest and Ivory Equities Limited, a California limited partnership as to an
undivided 47.7932% interest as tenants in commeon. The term of the contract is two years, starting from March 1, 2021,
and the agreed monthly rent is $6,144.

The aggregate minimum annual lease payments under operating leases in effect on December 31, 2021, are as follows:

Year Obligation

2022 5 73,728
2023 12,288
2024 -
2025 -
Thereafter -
Total future minimum operating lease payments 5 86,016

Rent expenses were in the amount of 549,842 and $49,524 as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively.

Contingencies

The Company’s operations are subject to a variety of local and state regulation. Failure to comply with one or more of
those regulations could result in fines, restrictions on its operations, or losses of permits that could result in the
Company ceasing operations.

Litigation and Claims

From time to time, the Company may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of operations in the normal
course of business. As of December 31, 2021, there were no pending or threatened lawsuits that could reasonably be
expected to have a material effect on the results of the Company’s operations.
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13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subseguent events for the period from December 31, 2021, through March 31, 2022, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

There have been no events or transacti